
 
 
 
 
 
 

HEALTH AND ADULT SOCIAL CARE OVERVIEW AND 
SCRUTINY PANEL 
 
Thursday 22 November 2012 
2 pm 
Warspite Room, Council House 
 
Members: 
Councillor  Mrs Aspinall, Chair 
Councillor Monahan, Vice Chair 
Councillors Mrs Bowyer, Fox, Gordon, James, Dr. Mahony, Mrs Nicholson, Parker, Jon Taylor 
and Tuffin. 
 
Members are invited to attend the above meeting to consider the items of business overleaf. 
 
 
Tracey Lee 
Chief Executive 

 

 

 Tracey Lee 
Chief Executive 
 
Plymouth City Council 
Civic Centre 
Plymouth  PL1 2AA 
 
Please ask for  Ross Jago, Democratic 
Support 
T 01752 304469 
E ross.jago@plymouth.gov.uk 
www.plymouth.gov.uk/democracy 
13 November 2012 

Public Document Pack



 
HEALTH AND ADULT SOCIAL CARE OVERVIEW AND 
SCRUTINY PANEL 
 
 
AGENDA 
 
PART I – PUBLIC MEETING 
  
1. APOLOGIES    
  
 To receive apologies for non-attendance by panel members. 
  
2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST    
  
 Members will be asked to make any declarations of interest in respect of items on this 

agenda. 
  
3. CHAIR'S URGENT BUSINESS    
  
 To receive reports on business which, in the opinion of the Chair, should be brought 

forward for urgent consideration. 
  
4. MINUTES   (Pages 1 - 22) 
  
 The panel will be asked to confirm the minutes of the meetings held on the 13 September 

and 26 September 2012. 
  
5. TRACKING RESOLUTIONS AND FEEDBACK FROM THE 

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY MANAGEMENT BOARD   
(Pages 23 - 24) 

  
 The panel will monitor the progress of previous resolutions and receive any relevant 

feedback from the Overview and Scrutiny Management Board. 
  
6. PLYMOUTH NHS HOSPITALS TRUST - CAR PARKING   (Pages 25 - 28) 
  
 To receive a report on parking facilities at Derriford Hospital.  
  
7. PLYMOUTH HOSPITALS NHS TRUST - REGIONAL PAY 

UPDATE   
(Pages 29 - 34) 

  
 To receive an update following the panel’s enquiry on the 26 September 2012 into NHS 

Regional Pay. 
  
8. PLYMOUTH HOSPITALS NHS TRUST - NEVER EVENTS   (Pages 35 - 38) 
  
 To receive an update on ‘Never Events’ at Derriford Hospital.  

 
  



 

9. WORK PROGRAMME   (Pages 39 - 40) 
  
 The panel will consider its work programme. 
  
10. EXEMPT BUSINESS    
  
 To consider passing a resolution under Section 100A (4) of the Local Government Act 

1972 to exclude the press and public from the meeting for the following item(s) of 
business on the grounds that it (they) involve(s) the likely disclosure of exempt 
information as defined in paragraph(s) of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Act, as amended 
by the Freedom of Information Act 2000 

  
PART II (PRIVATE MEETING) 
 
AGENDA 
 
MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC TO NOTE 
that under the law, the Panel is entitled to consider certain items in private.  Members of the 
public will be asked to leave the meeting when such items are discussed.  
 
NIL. 
  
 



This page is intentionally left blank



���������	�
	��������������������������	���������������������	���������������������

���������	�
	��������������������������	����������
������

�
��������	
�	������	��
�	

�
���������
	
	
�����
�����������������������	������
	
�����
���
�����������	������
	
�����
��������
�������
 ��!
�"
���#�$����%������
�����������
��
������&����
#
������
����"���''����
�
	
(
���"�������������)���������*������+���$
����,-�&.�
�
���
���������"������%�)�"���������+�������/���������)��������0�������$
����
	
$$������/��������.��	���0����"���+�	
$$����
���0�����0�������$
����	����
	
����.��	
�����
�������%
���"�+	�1�����$�$1���'
����1���/��������"��"����
�
����	���.���
1����"���+��1���/������	
��������.��	��"��������1����+����
��
�
��������'
�$����2��������������")��
������$
����	����	
����.���"��
���#�0
�
+%�$
���������
���3''��������$
����	����	
����.�
�
����$�����0�������"����4��$���"�'������"����5�67��$��
�
�����������	
�
�������������������������������������������
������	����������	����
�����
����������������
�������������������������������������
�����	�������������������	���
����������������
�����������������������
�

���� ������������	��	��������			
�
����'
��
���0�"�������
���
'���������������$�"������
�"�������������
"��
'�

�"����(�
�
���	
	

�� ��	�����	
� �	����	

���! 	 � ����	

	
�����
��%��
���
���

�����0��"�����$�� ,
�$�!�������
�������
����

����
����

	
�����
��#�����
�� 58���������������0�
9���0�
��������

�/���$��
���� ����
����

�
���� ���"���			

�
�0���"�����$�������
'�����$�����0����"�
������8:�#����4784���1;����
�����'
��
���0�
�$��"$�����9�
�

+8.� ����*������+,
���-�)
�)�$��������
�&.�����""�"��
���
�
0���<�
�

+4.� �$��"�$������45� +�.� �
� ���� '
��
���0�9�������������������������� ���������
������ ���������������������������������
���������������������������!��	������
�!�������� ������������������	�� ����  ������ 	���� ����� ����!���������������� ���

Agenda Item 4Page 1



"������������
���#�����$����%�����������#��
����������&�
������'(�#�!�������)*')�

������������������� ������
������ ��
�������������
����������		������������ �����
��������������������
��
����!����������������
���	��
����������������+�

�
���� �#���$�	"�%���	&"������			

�
������������
����$��
'�	����=����0����1���������
�

���� ����'��%	�����"�����	���	����&��'	����	�#�	�(��(��)	
���	���"���*	����%�����	&����			
�
�����������0���"��
��
������������&��0����
����
�����"��""�����>%�$������
	������0�=��
������
�&���
0��$$���
�

���� ������	#����#	���(����	+	��,����	��(�������	��	�#�	
%���&�"���	"���			
�
%�)�"���������+���$
����	
$$������/���������+�	/..�����
"��"������
���
��
������"����������)���$�������
�����!���1
��������������������?������-������
���
���"������9��

+�.� ������
0��$$��
'���)���$�����
��"����
��'
��������(����1����$����
'���>�����
'���'���=�
'
����
����������"���"�������
��856���"�85@�
'������������/�����������������$����
'�
��
����������"�������$
������"���������
��"��0��������"�1���������"�
�������
����
���
"�������������������
������
�������'
����
���)������1�����
���<�

+1.� ����1���"��0���"���0��
'�����������
��"����
��'
��'���������
�������������
��"����1�������
$���0�$����
'����������"����0�$
���������0��0�����
�������
"�����"��
��"������
�)
�"���'�������
�
���
'������'��������<�

+.� ������"���0��
'������
$$
"���
���������!���1
�����?�����
��"�������������)����
�
��
)�"����"�)�"����1�"�

$��
$$
"���
����"����0����� ����"�����
���0�����
����)�$����
'�����
�����������"��"��
'�"�0�������"����)��<�

+".� 
$$��������"�
��������''��������������"���
������������
��"�1�����������"��������
�����������������
'��������0����"�$���0�$������������<�

+�.� �������
��"�1������"���
�����1�"��'�
$�AA��
�5@�������������&�����0�������������)���
$
"���
'�$���������0�������������������
$$������������0�����������
����������"��
��"�
1������
���"�1�����������$�����
�
$$���������''��0���)�����

-������
�����
�B�����
���'�
$�$�$1����
'�����
$$����������������
���"������9��

+'.� ����0�������������������
�����
��"������"�$��"�'
��1�"�����&�"����A7�
)���
�������)�
�����
����������
"������
�0��������
�
�����
��"�����������������
��"���
��
'�1�"���
�5@���������"���
�������������
��"�1��$���0�"����
�0����
1������"�����0�������$���"�������"�
$$���������)������%�����"�"�����0���
��"��
����"�'
��87��1�
&�"�1�"�<�

+0.� �������''�����������$
)�"����
������������"���
������''���
��
��"�1���$��
��"�
�������� ����������������
��"�1����
)�"�"������
$��������)���������0<�

+�.�$��������������"$����"��
���������������"����"���$����("��������"�
$$������
����
������$��
�&��0���������$��
��"�����0�����������)�����
��"�1��

Page 2



"������������
���#�����$����%�����������#��
����������&�
������'(�#�!�������)*')�

������"�1���
$�������$�������$�<�

+�.� �	/��
$�������$�������$���
�&�"�"����0��������&��"��������"�����
��������

���
'��
�������$��������
��)����1�������������&�
���
'��
�������)���<�

+;.� ��������������
����0�)������)��'�
$������������������''�1����)�"��������
����
���������)�"������00����"�������������)���"�"��
����)����C��)
�)��0�
"

�D�����������������������"�'��B�������'
��
���0�"�����0�<�

+&.� ������"���0�������
��1���"�
��������$�����
���
'�����1���"��0���"�������"���
��
�����������
��"�1��
''(����1���$��
)�"�
$$���������)�����

�����������0���"��
���
$$��"������9��

+8.����$
����	
$$������/�����������������
��������������84�$
������
���"����

����
0����<�
�

+4.������
���
��1�"�
�����������������
)�"�"��
�������������������<�
�

+5.��������)�������������0�"�'
��$�$1�����
�����!���1
�����?������
�����"����
$�����0���������''���������
$�������$�������$��

�
�	�� ,"&���	#����#	����������			

�
��������������)�"������"����
�����������'���
'���1����������'����
������
������
���
����
������-���������
���"������(�
�
+�.� � ����
���1������ '
�� &��� ��1��� ������� '����
��� ����� �����'��� '�
$� ���� ����
����

/���������)���+�/�.��
��
�������
�������
��8�������4785<�

+1.�� ���
���;
������������
������������������������&����
�&�����$������"��0��������
��1��� /������ �
"���� 	
$$����
���0� ��"� �������� /�$��� ���
������
	
$$������
���� ���&� ����0�$����� -������0����� 	
��� 3''���� /������
-$��
)�$�������$����"��$��0�����������0<�

+.� � &��� $�����
���� ����"�"� �"����'����
�� 
'� ����� �/�� ��1��� /������ ���''� �
�
�����'��� �
� ,
��� ����
����� +%��$1��� 4784.� ��"� ���� '����� '��"��0� '
�$����
+%��$1���4784.��

-������
�����
�B�����
���'�
$���������������������
���"������9�
�
+".�� ��1���/������ '��"��0��
��"�1�����0('���"�'
����
���������
��'��"��0��
��"�

1�����
���"���$����"�������<�

+�.� � ����������� )���
���$
"���� '
�� ���� ����0����
��
'� ��1��� ������� ���
� ���� �
���
����
����������$
"���������1���0��)������"��

�0���"������9�
�
+8.�� ����#
�������&���0���������$�"���)����1����
����������<�

�
+4.�� ������1����������
��
$���'��$��
�&����"�����1���"�1������%�$
�����

����
���3''�����
�

�

Page 3



"������������
���#�����$����%�����������#��
����������&�
������'(�#�!�������)*')�


��� #����#	���	)���&���%			
�
��������������)�"������"����
��������
0�����
'��������"
��/��������"�E���1���0�
�
��"�����������
���"������9�
�
+�.� � �������$
����/��������"�E���1���0��
��"���������&�������������������
���1���

'
����
$
���0��������������"�����1���0�
'�����"�������"�'
����������0����
��
'�
���������"��
��������
$$����
���0<�
�

+1.�� �����
��"=��'
����
��"�1��
������)��0�����1�����
���1����������
��
$���'
��
���"������
��0���
������"��"������������
��"�
����1�����
�������"��������"�
������0�����
�������
'��������<�
�

+.� � ����/��������"�E���1���0��
��"��
��"���)��������0����'������
)���

$$����
���0�"����
�����
�������������1������������"��
��������
1����)�����0�����#
����������0�����"��������$����+#���.���"�"�)��
���0���
;
����������0��'
���
�����������"�����1��1�����""�����"<��
�

+".�� �����
��"��
��"��
�"�
$$����
������
��
����'
��������"����
����������0�
������������0��"��
�����#
�������������"�E���1���0�������0����������
��"�����"��
��
$$��"���
���'
��;
����
$$����
���0���"�����0�����0����)������
���
���������"��
�������<�
�

+�.� � �����
��"��
��"�1���0��
0�����������������
$$����
���0�0�
��������

$$��������"������
�������
������
�"�)��
���������"���"������"��0�
'�����
���������"�����1���0����"��
'�����
$$�����<�
�

+'.� � �������"
���
��"�����
������
������"��
��"���&��
������������
����
����'�
$�
������4785���	�������������1
��"�������������0����9��
�

•� ����"�)��
�$����#
����������0�����"��������$���<�
•� ����
����0���������1����$����
'�����,
���	�������	
$$����
���0�

!�
��<�
•� 
)�������0�
'�������������
��
'���1���/���������
������
�������
����<�
•� 
)�������0����������
��
'���#
����/��������"�E���1���0�������0�<�
•� ����
����0�����0����"�
$$����
���0����
�0����������1�����"�#
����

	
$$����
���0��������������
�
�0���"���������"
��/��������"�E���1���0��
��"�$��������
��"�1������"�"�
��
'���������������0��"�����
�


��� �,�����	������%	+	��%�����	,�*			
�
����������������'
�$�"���������������$�����0��
��"�1�����"��
�"�������/��
��0�
����������������
����E����������$�����0��
��"���&�������
������4@�
�����$1���4784���
�
�
�

Page 4



"������������
���#�����$����%�����������#��
����������&�
������'(�#�!�������)*')�


��� )��'	,��%�����			
�
�����������0���"��
�����
)�������
�&���
0��$$�����1;����
�����'
��
���0�
�""���
���(�
�
+8.� ���$
�����/��/
��������������(�E������������+�
)�$1��.<�

�
+4.� %����'
�"�/
�������	���9����&��0�'
������"���1��"�+�
)�$1��.<�

�
+5.� ?�"����
����1���/��������������
��+#������.<�

�
+A.� %�$������	������0���
�



�� �-��,�	&"������			
�
������������
����$��
'�� �$���1���������
�
�
�
�
�

Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 6



���������	�
	��������������������������	������������������	���	���������������������

���������	�
	��������������������������	����������������
�

��	���	���������������������
�

���������
�
	
�����
�����������������������	������
	
�����
���
�����������	������
	
�����
��������
�������
� 
���!�"�����������
��
������#����!
������
���� �
��$$����
�
��
�
%����$
���&������	
�����
���'
(��� �)������
�����
�
���
��������� �����	
�����
�������*�
�&���	
����+��	
�����
������
���
*	
�������	
����+��� �	
�����
��,�����#��*)�-
��	
�����	
����+��
�
����"�����%������� ����./�//��"��� �$������ ����0�//��"��
�
�����������	
�
�������������������������������������������
������	����������	����
�����
����������������
�������������������������������������
�����	�������������������	���
����������������
�����������������������
�

����  !�"
#
$%�&���'�%&$!#!�$���
�
����$
��
���%� �������
���
$���������������"� ������
� �������������
 ��
$�
� ����1�
�
&����
�

(������&������
��	�%�����

#����� %��������

	
�����
��!�����
�� ��������
��02��� �
03��,��4���
����
,������%�
��������

�4���"��
���� ����
����

	
�����
�����#��� ��������
��02��� �
03��,��4���
����
,������%�
��������

��"&���
$�����
����
������&���
���-����
	
""������*���+�

����
����

	
�����
����������� ��������
��02��� �
03��,��4���
����
,������%�
��������

������ ���"&���
$�
�����
����	
���%��

$��� ��-���

����
����

�
���� ��
%#)��*#+!&$�,*�%&!�����

�
������������
����"��
$�	����5����%����&���������
�

���� ��*$���!�$��
-.�$!#(��
& ���& %$%�&����&��#$%*(���
�
���������5����� �
$$����� -��� ���������������������
����,������������"���� �	
� ���
���
	
��
����"���������&����
���� ���������������-���
�����"�����%�����"&���������%�-�������
���

Page 7



�������������
��������� ����!��������������
����������"���������#$���%�������#&'#�

&���$��%�
����������
���
$�����
��
����"��� ���$���� ��
����� ������
�� 
�"������� �
$��6���������#� �6�����
���
������ �������������%�� �����������
�

���� &�����*$���!�$�#!+%�&
"��
-�/��%$&!����!��%�&���
�

0� �"-(�*$������%$
"��&���$#*�$���

�
� �������������� �$�
"�����!�"����	���$��(����-��
$����"
�����4��

4
�������������������!�"������
��� ������7�
�

*�+� ���� 	
��
����"����� �� %�
��� 
$� 8/� ������� ������� � ����$���%�

��
�����������
����� �� ����������9�
�

*&+����� ������ �
�� � �� � "���%�"���� ���"� ����� ������ 
$� ����
��(������� � ������������ ��
����$$��� ��� ���������� � ���� �
������
����!�"������������$$�
�� �������������
�����9�

�
*+������-��� ��
�
����� ����� "� �� &�� ���� 
��
����"�� � �����

�
�� ���� ��
�&������
-� �&�������������
�� 9�
�

* +��
� ����
����
�� �&������#�������
��� ���
��� �����
��
$�
�������������-��
���
��9�

�
*�+�20���������
$����������5����
"������������
����%��������

�6���� � �
� ��
�� � :80/"����
�� ���� ������ �$� ������ ����� �
�
���%��� "� �� �
� ����� ���"�� �� � 
� ���
��� ���� ��%�� &����
�
�� ���������&����$�������:3"����
�����8/.01.;9�

�
*$+� �-�����
�#� ��� ���������� ����
(�"������80/� ��
���� �&�����

��
��� ���� ������ ����� 
��� ��� ���� ��%�
�� 
$� :3"����
�� ����
������ � ������ ����� "���� ����
��� $
�� �&����� �� � ���� ������
�
�#� ���������$$��
��  ��������"9�

�
*%+� �������������-��
���
����
����%����
���������"���� �
� ���
���

�
�� �&���(��
�� ������ ����
���&���%�"� ��������
������ �
������������"�����9�

�
*�+����� � 
��
����"� �
�� � 
������� �
� "���� �� � �
�� � &��

��
-� ��%�$�� &�#��
�����������
������%�����&���������&��������
���������(���� �&�$
��������� �
$��������� �������9�

�
*�+� ��� !�"��� ���� 
""���� � �
� ��%�� 6������� �������� ���� �� �

�
�� � ������� ����� ���$$� ����� ��-
�-� � �� � -����� ��#��� ���
�
�
�������������������"� �� ����
�����%�� ��%����%����
�
��������"���� �
� ���
����

�
<������
�����
�6�����
���$�
"���������������������
��� ������7�

�
*=+� �����������
�� ��
�� �&��� -��� �
���
���&���
��
����������

$
������� ����-������ ����������-�����-��� ���-�������
� ����
�

Page 8



�������������
��������� ����!��������������
����������"���������#$���%�������#&'#�

"�#�� ��$
�"� �  ����
��� ����� 
��� ����%� ���� ��
�
�����
��%�� ��%� ����� ���"�� �� � 
� ���
���� ����
�%�� ���� ������
�(������� ������%���"
����
$���#������&�������������� � �
�
� &�� ��#��� 
�� �
�� ��#����� �&����� ���� �  ����� ��
������������������������
�������������%9�

�
*#+��������������� �����
���� ���������$$����-��������������������

�����������������&
��
"�8/���������
$���������������%�� ��
�
��%�%�"���� ����� ���$$�� � ������ ���� �
�#� ��#��%� ����� �
�
�  ����� ���� ��
&��"�� ����
�%�� �������  ������
��� 
�� �����
���"���� �
� ���
���"����"����
�����$$�"
����������$��������
�������
�� 
�� � �
�� &�� �%�
�� � �� � ���� 
���
��� �� � �
� &��
�(��
�� 9�

�
*�+� ����������
$�������&������
������� �����%������ �������
$� �����

��������� ������������
�� ��
�� ���#��$��������
���&������ $
��
����$����� ����
���"� ����%�� ��%���������"���� �
� ���
�����
���������������
�� ������
����
�� �
��

����$$������ ��-��%��

-������%����
���������"���� �
� ���
����� ��� ��
��(��
���
&
��9�

�
*"+�
��������� ��� ����� ���"�� �� � 
� ���
��� �
�� � ���
�� $
��

�"��
-� �������"������ ��������
�9��
�

*�+���������
����
�� �&��
������ ����������������������������
������
$��������%��
����&���
�������"� ���
������
�
"��
$�
���������� �������&���%�
�9�

�
*
+����$$� ����� ������ ��
-� ��%� �(������� ���� �
� ���� ���������� ���$$�

����� ������ 
$�  ������
��� ��%�� ��%� ���%��� �
� ���� �� ���"��
�� �
� ���
���&������������
�������"���� ������������9�

�
*�+������������ �
"�� ���-���� $
�� ����� ���� ������ ����%%�� � �
�

�������� � �� �
�%� ���"� ����� $
�� ������"���� �
�� � &��
 �-��
�� �� ������ ����� �
�� ����  �$�����-�� ��
�
����� $
��

���
����%9�������������������
���������������%�$
�����$$��� �
���� ������ �
�� � ������� ����� ���$$� ����� &���%� ��%�%� �� ����
������ � ��
��������
���
�
�%�����������������&
��������� �
����$������ �����
��
$������
������9�

�
*6+������"�������������&����-� ������������"
 ���
$������%�������

������ ��
-� ��%� ���� �� ���%��
$� ���-��������
���  ��� � �� �
��� � ��
����%������ ��������"
������-���� ���-��� ��������

""������ �� � ������� � $
���
�������� �
� �����#�� �����������
��� � ��
�&����%�%� ��������� �&����������4������
""������
��� � � �
� ��
-� �� ���� ��%��� ���-��� ��� ���� ��%��� ��>�� ��� ����
��%���������� �����4
��������
�� ���� ��
����$�����
��� ���
����$����������������������������������"9�

�
*�+� ���� ������ ��
%���� � ���� �
��� ��� ������� ���� ��� )�-
�� �� �

Page 9



�������������
��������� ����!��������������
����������"���������#$���%�������#&'#�

	
��������� ��
�� ��������$����������
�������?&�%%�������5��
�
� ��
�
����� �� � &���� ���� $
���� � &�� ���� 
��
����"� �� �
�������
�
����������"� �������������
�� ��
�� �
��� ���
�����"����
�����-������ ����$$�"
����9�

�
*�+� ���� ���$$� ��
��� ���� ������ ����� ���� � � ��� ���� 
��
����"5��

 ������
�������� ��%�"���%���9�
�

*�+� �����������
�� �&����6���� ��
�"�#������
(�"������-��%��
$�
:;/�"����
��
-��� ��
� ������� ������������
�� � &�� ��-�����%�
���������������� �������%�"����������
""����
����9�

�
*�+��������%�� ��
�����
���� ?�%�� ��$
��	���%�5���%
�����
�������

&
�� � �
�� � ��� � �
�  ������ �� � �(������ �� -���� 
�� ��
���
��%
�����
���� � ����� ���"�� �� � 
� ���
��� ��� � � �
� &��
��������&���$
�����$$��� ����-�����
�

��������������#� ����!�"���$
����������� ������ �
����&���
����
� � �
,0� �"-(�*$��*&%1!#�%$-���

�
� )������@����������
�������
$���
�����4������%�"��������
��� ��
�

���������������7�
�

*�+� ��������
�����
���������%�
������ ��
������������"�������
�����������
����-�����%������� �
�����-����A���&�������

"�����
����� ������
� ��%�
������
�������������������
-������������-� �����
�����
��������
� ��%�
������
�������
�� �����#�
$����������-� ����$�
"����-�����"��
����9�
�

*&+���%�
����A��
������������"����
�� ��
��&��
��� ��� ������
�����"�����������$�������������9�

�
*+����-����A���&������
������
"�����
��� � ��
����#���
����


$����� �$$������
�����
����"��#������ �������&������
��
�
�#�$
�����
$���������-�������
��&������������� �&����
� -
��� �����
����� ������ ��%���&������
��
���(��9�

�
* +��������������������
$���������
�����$
�"���������� ��������

������&������
��������� ���
����������� �&����� -�����
�� �������� � �
���6�����9�

�
*�+��-� ������%%���� ����������������&��%�����%�&��"��"
���

$��%"���� �%����������6��������� �-��
�� ���
���%�� �����
������"��
��������� �&������������
���� �&
��
"�
$�

�%�������
��9�

Page 10



�������������
��������� ����!��������������
����������"���������#$���%�������#&'#�

�
*$+� �������%�������� ��"� ���&�����������"����$
����������%�

��
 ���-�������������&������$
�"������6���� ��
����-��
�
�#��%���"������ ��$$���-���� �����
���-��"���%�"�����
�

<������
�����
�6�����
���$�
"�"�"&����
$����������������������
��� �
�����7��
�

*%+� �������������������
$���������
������?��&������
�����
�5�
�� ��
������� �&������
 � �
-�������"&���
$������9�
�

*�+�
��������
�� � ��
���6������%�%�"�������
�� 
���

��������
������
$���������$
�"���
��%�-��%��(�������������
������$$���-����%�%�"���9�

�
*�+� �������6�������������������
��������������
���������� �


� ���
����(���� 9�
�

*=+� ��������
�
��
����� �$$������
�������$��������-�����
�����
�$$���-�����������&����
�#$
�����<���� �&���� �$$������
���
-��
�����4�"������
����������-����
���������� ����"������&���

��
"��9�

�
*#+�#����
�����"
�����
$������
�#$
����������
����-��

����
�
%����
��������@������������
�"
��������� � ����#��
�
�=
&����������� ����%����
����"���� �
� ���
����	���%��
"���%�"�������
�����%%���� �������$$���-��
��������
������
#��������
�%�������
�� �&����������?��%���
����%5����������
��������&��9�

�
*�+� ��������������� ��
�������������"��
������&�������
�


����&�����
�����
�%�������
���,
�#������
�� �&����%�%� ����
 ������
���
��=
&� �������
�������-����� ���%���� �
"���%�"����
$��&���������$$���
�� �$�����
�
����&�����
�����
&����
$��������&�������� ����&������"��
�%�-��������&�����$$
�����

�
��������������#� �)��@������$
����������� �����

� � �
�0� #�-
"���""!+!��'�(% �%1!����

�
� �������������
"� �!
����#������)����
��
$��"��
�"����������
���

�� � )�-��
�"���� ��� ���� �
���� 	
���%�� 
$� �� ��-��� *�	�+�� � ���
�#��������
��� ������7��
�

Page 11



�������������
��������� ����!��������������
����������"���������#$���%�������#&'#�

*�+� ���� �	�� ���� ��-
�-� � ��� ���� ������
�� 
$� ���� �%�� �� $
��
	���%��*�'	+�������4�����������"��<���� ������� ���"���� �

$����"���� �
� ���
��9�
�

*&+������'	�����&��� �
��=
&��-������
��� ��������%�$���������� �
��"
-��%�  ����"�����
��� ���� �����"� ���� &��� � 
�� ��
#�
��� %�� �� � �#����� $��"��
�#� "
���
�� � ���
�%�� ���
���������� �����"�� �
��-��� ��%��� ������ �$���� ���� �����%���
��

����22���������
$����$$�����-� �������������9�

�
*+��$$������%������
�� ��
��&������-� ��������������"��� ���%��

���� �"���"���� �� ���� 	
��
����"5�� ����
��� ���� ?����"��
�����%59�

�
* +����� ������� �� � �� �
��� ��� ���� ���
��
�� ������%�� 
$� :8/&��

��
 ���-���� �� � �$$������ ��-��%�� ��
��� �����4��� �
��-���
����
���
$�������������
����,����������-�����
����������������
�����
$�����
�����9�

�
*�+����� 	������
�� �� � ��#� � ���� ���� ��-���� &
 ���� �
� �

#� ���

����
�����
$���%�
���������� �����������
$��
� ��%�
�����BB�
��������
$�"� ��-����
�#� ���������4���� �������
����#����
�
��
� ����
���
��9�

�
*$+� ����	
��
����"���
�
������
�� �������������.C���������������

��#���
"����������������������� ���������������������"�������
�����
��
����&���
�����������%9�

�
*%+� ���� �	�� ����� ��%�%��%� ��� �� ��-���� 
$� ���� ?�%�� �� $
��

	���%�5�� �4�� �"��
����� �� � ��%�%� � ����� ��
�
����� �� �

��������
���� ���
��������"�"&��������� ��
�
��������
�
��%
����������?�%�� ��$
��	���%�5���������������-��%�������

�� �&��"� ���
���#������� ����
�����
�������"������ ����
�	���
�� ��
����%
���������������	
��
����"�����������$����
����� ����� 
�� � �
�� &�� ��%�%� � $����� ��� ��"������
���
��%
�����
����

�
<������
�����
�6�����
���$�
"���������������������
��� ������7��
�

*�+����� �"���� 
$� �4�� ��%�
������ � ���� 
�� ���� �
��� �
�
"��
�
�� �&����%�9��

�
*�+� ������������-��������� �����	���
�� ��
��&�� $��(�&��������

�����������������
"��
$�	
��
����"���
�
�����������
�� 9�
�

*=+� �� 
��������� ����
��� �
� �� 
"��������-�� ���������� �����"�
������6���� ���
��������4�������"�������%������� � ��
�&��
������ 
$� ���� �"�
������ 
$� ���� ���������� �����"�� )
���
&�� ��%�
$��
"���
������ ������ �������� ��
���#��������� �
��-��%����
�� �&��������� �
-���������(��$��������9��

Page 12



�������������
��������� ����!��������������
����������"���������#$���%�������#&'#�

�
*#+� ��%
����
��� �����

�
����
��%���"�����������%�� ��
������'	��
�
��������������#� �����#�����$
����������� ������

� � �
 0� #�-
"���""!+!��'�&*#�%&+���

�
� �������������
"� �4�����4��
(����
=���D�� �$
������	�"���%��

�%�������,�����	��������
����	
���%��
$�������%�*�	�+��<������
���
��� ������7�
�

*�+� �
����)�-
��4����������� ��
��=
��� �����	
��
����"������
������������%�������� ��� ��
������"&���
$����� �������
�������� ��
��=
��� ���������������
�� ��"� ����%���$
��
����������� ��
����%���$
�����$$9�
�

*&+������	�� � ��
��&����-����������%��%��������"���� �

� ���
�������������������
�����$��������������%�������
�%��
������������ ���������-������� � ��
�&�� ���-��� �
 �$$�������������
�� �&�� 
���&���  ������%���
���"������ �

����������� ����-�����9�

�
*+� �����	��&����-� ������������"�"&���������������������%�����

<��%�������������%������
����"����������
$����
������4��
(�
���
��� ���-�����-��%����� ��
�"����"�"&�������#��&
�����
����$����&=��9�

�
* +������������ �"
��-��� ��� � �"
������ ����$$����
�%�
�������

�4����	��"�"&����
���-���%��%�-��3��
���������#��(������$�
$
�� ��
��
�#�;/��
���������#����$$��
�� ��
�#��
�����9�

�
*�+�����	
��
����"5�� ������
�� 
�"��������������
���-� �

�� � 
��
����-��
����%��%���������"9�
�

*$+� �������%�� ��
���-����
$���#����������� � ��
�&����
%���� �
����������������������� ���%����������
$���#�����&������
$�
�����
����������
�#� ��� ����������
$��
�#����������� �
����
���$���
�#���������"
�������#�����
�&����������� ���$$���

&�������,
"���������
�#� ���%�������%������$�����-��"
���
���-������������
$�&����������9�

�
*%+��4��� � ��
����-����%

 ����$$����-����������������
�%�����

4��
(������������� �&�����������"�������
-� � �&�����

Page 13



�������������
��������� ����!��������������
����������"���������#$���%�������#&'#�

!�"�������������6����� �����������������
�������������������� �
..�
$�����0E����$$����-����� ���
����������F�
����8/��������G�
���%
����� ����������#��%����"���� �
� ���
����
�� ��
��
�"��
-���������
�����

�
<������
�����
�6�����
���$�
"����������������������
��� ������7�

�
*�+��
��������#���������������������� �&����
�#��%����$���"� ��

��
�����������������������-���&���%
���������&������
$�����
��-��
�"�������������������
�#9�

�
*�+� ���$$� �
� � ���� �	�� ����� ����� �����  �"
��-��� � �� �

 �"
������ �����������$$���� ��$����%����
������� �
� ���
���
������� � ��� �� ���$$� 
������� &���%� ���"����� � &�$
���
�"���"������
�����$$��
�� ��
����1�����9�

�
*=+� ���$$��������
���� �������"�����
�� �&����-��������"���� �

&����
�
�����$
����%�
����������	���������8C���������
$�
�������
���������������������
-���CC����������������#��
$�
��� ���������������
����	
�������4
�������������#������
����
E/���� ���������������������6���� ��
��������$�
"��&�
� �
$�
"�
����������������
���%����� ����������������9�

�
*#+�"���� 
�%�������
��� ����� �����%� ��  
����� � ���$�� ��� ����

�-����&����#����"�(9�
�

*�+� $
���
"�����$$��������%���
���������"���� �
� ���
����
�� �
�����������
�#��
�������%����������$$��
�� ��

����
��
�#�
������%������������"�������
$����&��������
"��������������
����� ������ ��%�$
�����"������"���
���%�������$$������
���-�
����9�

�
*"+����-���� ��
-� � � &�� ���������� ������� ����� &���%� ��
 � ��

�����	��&����-� ������������������������
�� �%
�����������
�
�����-��&��������"�������
�9�

�
*�+���������������� ������%����������
���%�������$$���������
����

)�-
���� ��(�����4
�����������"�
������%�������$$������
�"��
�� �$
�����#��������
""
 ���
���� ����-���
�(���������� ���<$���%�
������ ������� �������������� ��"����

��������"������ ��������
��������������
���
�� ��
������

�
��������������#� ����4��
(�$
����������� ������
�

� � �

Page 14



�������������
��������� ����!��������������
����������"���������#$���%�������#&'#�

!0� ,#%$%���(! %�
"�
����%
$%�&���
�

� �������������
"� ������ ����$$������ <� ��������������
�������%����
���������� �������
����
��*���+��������$$��������
��� ������7��
�

*�+� ���� ������������� ������ 
$� ���� ������%��� $���%� �����4���
����
������� ��%�
������ �� � ��� ������� �
������ <�� ��"���� � ����
�
���� 
$� ���� ���� �
� ������� ���� ��
��
�� 
$� ���"�� �� �

� ���
��� 
$� ���-���� � ���� ��
�
���� ����� �
�%��� �
�
�� ��"���� ���� ��������
�� 
$� ����
���� ���"�� �� � 
� ���
���
$
�� 
�
�����������4��������=��� �������������
�����������

$� ����"����%� �
� ��-�� 
���� �� � �
�� � �
�� %���� ����
��� ���
�
���
����%�
������-��9�

�
*&+����� ����"��� �
�  �"������ ���� ���"�� �� � 
� ���
��� ���������

������&����
�"� ������6����$�� ����$$� ��������,���%�
���
�� �
&�� 
�����1��
 ���-�� �� � ��  ��%��
��� �� � �����������
 �-����
��$
������������%�����������"�����������

������
��
�� �
""��"����
$�"� �������$$���������&�
���������������
�
������������ ����-�-���
$�"����������9�

�
*+���������������"���������
�
��� �����������
���
����-����&����
�

���"�� ���� ���� ���
�%��� ��
""�� � � ����� �������

�������� �
��� ����$���%�
������
������-��%�����
�%��&������
"���%�"���� 
$� �(�����%� ���
����� ������� �����"�#�� ����#��

�� ���� ���"�� �� � 
� ���
��� 
$� "�"&����� <�� ���� �
�� ����
���"���� �
� ���
�������������������
&��"��&����
�������
�����"���%� 9�

�
* +��������������
��������� ��
����������
����� ������
��������

�������� ������� �� �-� ������ 
�� 
�����-����� &�� ��%�
�� 
�� ��&�
��%�
��� �$� ��
�
����� �����  ����"������ �
� ����
������ �%��� �
���"���� �
� ���
��9�

�
*�+����������
�� �������
��������������������"�����
��� ��"����

����
������ ��%
����� � ���"�� �� � 
� ���
��� ��� &
��� �
��� �� �
��%�
������-���9�

�
*$+� ������������������� ��
�&���� ��� �&�������-���� ��-
�-� �

�����������%���������
�&������"���%���������"���� �
� ���
���

$�"� �������$$�������
�����-��9�

�
*%+� ���������� ����������FD
�������	
"�����
�G���%%����
���
$�

����	
��
����"����������
���
��� �������$$��� ���������#�&��
���� �
-����� 
$� ��
�%��� ����� "���� 
$� ���� ��%%����
���
�"
�����%��
����
�#�&�����
�
������������ ����-�
�����&����
��=��� �&��&
��������"��
������� ������������
������-��9�

�
*�+�����  ��%���� ���
���� � ����� ���� 
$� ���� ��
�
����� $���


�����%�� � ���� &���$���� �� � ���� ������� ��� ���� �
���� �����

Page 15



�������������
��������� ����!��������������
����������"���������#$���%�������#&'#�

��
�� ���%�%��������� �������$$����
�%����������&����� ��
���
��%
������%�
""��������
�$����������"��
-� �"���%�"����
$�
�(�����%� ���
����� ������� ����� ����#��%� ���� ���"�� �� �

� ���
�������������"����
�%������%����������"����������
��&��
 ���-��� �&���"����� ����&���%��(���"���� �������-���
�

<������
�����
�6�����
��$�
"�"�"&����
$���������������������
��� �
�����7�

�
*�+� �������
�� ��� 
�&�� ���&������%���-���"����
����������9�
*=+� ���� ��
�
����� $
�� "� ���� ���$$� �
�� � �
��  ���-��� ��%��$�����

��-��%����� ���� ���$$���� � � �
�&����%�%� � ����
���
�"
-��

�%�������
��� "
-� � $
���� � �� �  ���-��� �� ?&���� ������5�

�%�������
���� ��
��� �������%��
���&�����
�
�������������� �
��������(������������������"���%�"���9�

�
*#+����� ��
���� ����� ���� 
��
����"� �� � �"&��#� � 
�� ����

��������� ������� ���� ������� ��� � � �
� 
��� ��� ���� ������%���
����� $�� � ���"�� ���� ���"�� �� � 
� ���
���  �&���� �� �
 �-���� � �������
�� ����� $�
"� ���� �"�
�������
�#�
$� ���-���
�� ���%���

�
��������������#� �������$$�����$
������
����&���
����

� � �
'0� �"-(�*$������%$
"��&���$#*�$�2�&����

�
� � ��>��'���#���������������%�����)����$
� �4
�������!
�������$$�

��%
������%�	
""�������������
"� ��
�����"�����%�����'���#����
���
��� ���������
����� ����������%��$����������������$$�����
����%�
���"�$
��� -����� �������������$���������"���%�"������������&���
��
��������%��
���%�%�����$$��������������
$���%�
����������

<������
�����
�6�����
���$�
"��������������'���#�������
��� ������
H��
��"�"&������ �&�
"��������
$�����	
��
����"��� �
 �-��
���%���%�
������
�
�����$
��
���%���	
��
����"������������������
�����
�#�
$�����	
��
����"��� � �"�%� �������
���&����������$$�
�� �"���%�"����&�������H��
���$������������ ���������!�"����������
��
"��%�	���$��(����-���
�� �&���
�#��%��
��  ������������

��������������#�����'���#����$
������
����&���
���
�����"�����%���

� � �
+0� �"-(�*$����
(,!#��'���((!#�!���

�
� ���� ������ ���
"� � 	��
���� ������� �����������%� ���� ���"
����

	��"&���
$�
""�����	��
�������
��� ������7�
�

*�+� ��������������� ��
���
%��������������	
��
����"�������
��
=���� �
�#��%� 
�� ���� ���%��� &��� ����� �� ��"&��� 
$� 
���
���

Page 16



�������������
��������� ����!��������������
����������"���������#$���%�������#&'#�

�����&���%�
��� ��� 9��
�

*&+������'	������
���$$
� �&����� ���
&�&�����-����� �&���������
���� �����"����� 
��� 
$� ����� �
����� �� � ���� D
��� �
�
"��
������������ �� � ��
��� ����� �4�� ���� ���� E1.0� ���� ����
��%�������������������-�������
�9��

�
*+� �����4���� ��
�"�#�����%����� �
���
$���
���
���
���
�� �

������� �������%�� ��-�����"&���
$��� �� ������� ���������
�� �
&������������������&������������-���
��
����9�

�
* +���
�� � ������ ���%��� �
� ����� ���"�� �� � 
� ���
��� ������


�� �&������%��$������"����
������"
������������������
���
�
�
"�9�

�
*�+���������������(����������&���
$�����������$$��
�#��%����

)����$
� �������������
$���%�
��������
�� �"���������"
���
"
&����"�"&����"����
��&��������� �&�����������9���

�
*$+� ���������
�� ��"��
����������
������������%��$�����$��
����<$�

���$$� ����� �
� ��%�%�� ��� �� �������� ���
�� ��� �
�� � ��-�� ��
��%��$������"����
���������-�������
�9��

�
*%+��'	���6���� ���%������-������ �����"���%�"����
$��(�����%�

���"��� �
� ���
�����
�������"���"���� 9���
�

*�+� �$� ��%�
���� �������� �"���"���� � ��� 
�� � ��� � �
� ���� �
���
$�
����
(�"������:.�8&��$�
"�������%�
�����
�
"���
�

<������
�����
�6�����
���$�
"�"�"&����
$���������������������
��� �
�����7��
�

*�+� ���� �"������
���
$� ���� �"���"������
��
$���%�
�������� ��� ����
�
����,�����
�� �&��$������
����������
��9�
�

*=+� ��������
���������������������������������-�������
���
�� �
&�� �&��� �
� $���� ���� %��� 
$� =
&� �
������ � ������ �
�� � &�� ���
���"����
$�
"������
�����
�%������?����I����$�� ���
-� ���59�

�
*#+��������%����
�� ���-������"��������������������������
���


�� ��%��$�����  ���� �� 
�� ����� ��
�
����� ���� ����� � �� �
�"���"���� ������� ���
����������
�� ��� 
�&�� �����-�����
�"���9�

�
*�+� ���� �
�� ��� ��
"��
$���&��� ���
���
�#�����
�� � �"�%��

���� ��
"��
$� �"���� &�������� �� � ���-����� � �
�%�� ����
���
��� � ��
�&��"� ���

�
��������������#� �	��
����$
������
����&���
���
�����"�����%��

Page 17



�������������
��������� ����!��������������
����������"���������#$���%�������#&'#�

� � �
�0� #!��((!& 
$%�&����

�
� '
��
���%� ���&�����
���&��� �
���%�� ����������� ����������"
���
$�

����������������
������ � �����"�����%�������������%��� ��
�
��
""�� �7�
�

.�� �
����"
����4
���������4��������*�4��+�������������$$�����
$�������%�%� ��������
��������
��
$��������%���������$$���
���"��� �������-����� �"
�����&�����#������
��
���9�
�

8�� ������4���$
�"�����
��� ���������"����
$������
�������
���"��
������������"������ ��������
��
$����$$��������������
��
�������������������#����9�

�
0�� ������4���$
�"�����
��� ���������"����
$������
������"��


������������ ���&1��%�
�����
�
"�9�
�

;�� ����������
����,������������"���� �	
� ���
���	
��
����"�
$
�"��������#������-�����
$�
�����#�����&������
���"��
�����
������"
������ �������&1��%�
����������
$������� ���

��������
����
���9�

�
C�� ����������
����,������������"���� �	
� ���
���	
��
����"�

�� ��4���$
�"�����
��� �����"��
-� ���
 ���-�����
"���%�"������ ����-����� ���%�����������������-���
��������%�
������ �
� ���
��9�

�
2�� ������4����������������(�����%������������� ������-���
��

�����%�"�������������� �
��������.//J�
$����$$9�
�

3�� �����������
���������(��� ������
$���-���"����
���
�� ��
��
��#������&�������������4����� ���6�����������������
�
��
 �������$$���-����#����A�&�����"���%�"����������%�9�

�
E�� ������4���$
�"��������� ���&�������������
�����
�����

������%�������� �����������$$����-��9�
�

B�� ������4�����������
���$������"�����%�
$������������
� ������
��
%������%�����������&
-����
""�� ���
����

� � �
���� !3!(�$�,*�%&!�����

�
������������
����"��
$��(�"���&���������
�

��!& %3��*��%���.�1�;+�
�
�
�
�

Page 18



The case against a local and regional approach to pay, terms 
and conditions in the NHS

The BMA is opposed to any moves way from national terms and conditions of service 
for NHS staff. Such moves would have a significant negative impact on the NHS, 
staff and patients.  

A national approach to contract negotiations for NHS staff is both efficient and fair. 
Any move to local and regional bargaining on pay and other terms and conditions of 
service (T and Cs) will lead to:  

• the shared values and culture of the NHS being undermined  
• additional costs through inefficient use of resources   
• a demoralised workforce   
• recruitment and retention problems   
• over-complexity and inefficiency in the NHS labour market   
• a reduction in service to patients  

Furthermore, this issue is a costly and time consuming distraction from serious 
attempts to address the huge financial challenges facing the NHS. Rather than 
focusing resources on short-term measures that will incur additional costs and 
demoralise the NHS workforce, the emphasis should be on allowing staff and 
managers to work together on initiatives to improve quality and efficiency of service 
to patients.  

  

Background 

National pay, T and Cs in the NHS  
Historically, the NHS' approach to determining pay and other T and Cs has been 
through regular national negotiations between Government, NHS management and 
the trade unions. Most recently, national contracts have been negotiated for the 
various components of the medical and dental workforce, whilst Agenda for Change 
is the national contract for most non-medical and dental NHS staff.  Agenda for 
Change is the current NHS grading and pay system for all NHS staff, with the 
exception of doctors, dentists and very senior managers. 

The benefits of a national system are clearly outlined in the Handbook to the NHS 
Constitution for England:  

National pay policy for the NHS is designed to provide fair, affordable pay in order to 
recruit, retain and motivate staff for the benefit of patients and to provide value for 
money for taxpayers. It also provides a range of flexibilities, such as the opportunity 
for recruitment and retention premia, to ensure that individual employers have the 
ability to respond effectively to local circumstances, while retaining a consistent 
national pay framework that is transparent and ensures equal pay for work of equal 
value. 

However, in the Chancellor's Autumn Statement in November 2011, it was 
announced that the independent Pay Review Bodies would be asked to consider how 
public sector pay can be made more responsive to local labour markets. In the health 
sector this included Agenda for Change staff but not doctors and dentists.  

Minute AnnexPage 1Page 19



  

Developments in south west England  

In summer 2012, 20 NHS trusts in south west England established themselves as the 
South West Pay, Terms and Conditions Consortium. 

The trusts involved in the consortium are:  

• Dorset County Hospital NHS Foundation Trust  
• Poole Hospital NHS Foundation Trust  
• The Royal Bournemouth and Christchurch Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust  
• Gloucester Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust  
• Great Western Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust  
• North Bristol NHS Trust  
• North Devon Healthcare NHS Trust  
• Plymouth Hospitals NHS Trust  
• Royal Cornwall Hospitals Trust  
• Royal Devon and Exeter NHS Foundation Trust  
• Royal United Hospital Bath NHS Trust  
• Salisbury NHS Foundation Trust  
• Taunton and Somerset NHS Foundation Trust  
• University Hospitals Bristol NHS Foundation Trust  
• Weston Area Health NHS Foundation Trust  
• Yeovil District Hospital NHS Foundation Trust  
• 2gether NHS Foundation Trust  
• Devon Partnership NHS Trust  
• Somerset Partnership NHS Foundation Trust  
• Dorset HealthCare NHS Foundation Trust  

The consortium is looking to break away from national pay, T and Cs with a view to 
making substantial savings in order to meet the 'Nicholson Challenge'’ of saving the 
NHS £20 billion by 2015.  

The consortium's discussion document Addressing Pay, Terms and Conditions
makes it clear that all staff, including medical and dental, are included in the scope of 
its work.  

Proposals include:  

• A 5% pay cut for staff earning over £55,000  
• Increasing working hours and reducing annual leave 
• A 'last resort' of terminating existing contracts and re-employing staff under 

new terms  
• For senior hospital doctors, a reduction in Supporting Professional Activities - 

protected time to work on non-clinical activities that deliver improvements to 
quality and efficiency.  

The consortium acknowledges that national negotiations are taking place for Agenda 
for Change staff but claims that progress is too slow, and there is no option but to 
look at making changes locally or regionally. The consortium will not be producing its 
business case for its proposals until the beginning of October and it is proposed that 
discussions in individual trusts will continue until end of 2012 and beyond.  

Page 2Page 20



The implications of these developments are considerable, as other regions across 
England could follow a similar path if definite moves are made to adopt local and 
regional pay and other T and Cs in the south west. 

In August 2012, the BMA and other health unions, including the Royal College of 
Nursing and UNISON, refused to recognise the consortium, making clear that any 
talks on the pay and T and Cs for their members should continue under the 
recognised and well established national machinery.  

  

Why a local and regional approach to pay and T and Cs in the NHS would 
waste resources 

It would be inefficient  

• The well-established machinery for national bargaining in the NHS ensures 
an efficient and cost-effective approach to negotiations on pay and T and Cs  

• A model where different parts of the NHS negotiated separately would be 
wasteful, with duplication of effort, more bureaucracy and greater inefficiency  

It would undermine the shared ethos of the NHS 

• Staff on different pay and T and Cs in different geographical areas would no 
longer have the same sense of working for the a singe, integrated service  

• It would be unfair and inequitable that staff doing the same job as colleagues 
elsewhere in the country should be paid less or have different terms of 
service   

• It would be another step towards the fragmentation of the shared values and 
culture of the NHS, which is already under attack from wider changes to the 
NHS which seeks to increase the use of ‘market forces’  

It is short-sighted and undermines the benefits of clinical leadership

• What the consortium is proposing is very short-sighted. For example – one 
possibility that has been raised is a cut to consultants’ Supporting 
Professional Activities –specially funded time they can devote to initiatives to 
improve quality. The projects that consultants work on in this time frequently 
improve productivity and save the NHS money  

It could create local recruitment and retention problems

• Regional pay differences could result in migration of doctors to other areas 
with better pay offers  

• Demoralised staff may also choose to leave the NHS or retire early, which 
would compound local retention difficulties and impact on patient services   

• Regional pay will cause additional problems for juniors doctors who during the 
start of their career rotate regularly between different posts across 
geographical boundaries – if pay, terms and conditions vary greatly, it will 
cause unnecessary uncertainty and confusion, and potentially undermine 
their training   

• Hospitals everywhere should be able to recruit and retain high-calibre staff. In 
a model where pay varies between regions, there is a risk that employers in 

Page 3Page 21



some areas would not be able to compete for staff on a level playing field with 
centres of excellence in big cities because these centres could offer more 
attractive remuneration. There could well be an impact on patient services if 
high-calibre staff could not be recruited or retained.  

It would demoralise staff and lead to more industrial unrest 

• Staff detrimentally affected by any imposed changes to national pay and T 
and Cs will be angered and demoralised, particularly after recent changes to 
the NHS pension scheme   

• This could lead to a prolonged period of poor industrial relations, which would 
be a further distraction from the challenges of improving the delivery of care in 
a context of increasing restrictions on resources  

It is unevidenced 

• There is no clear evidence that introducing regional pay and T and Cs in the 
public sector would deliver greater efficiency or long-term savings. Indeed, 
the £200,000 already spent by the 20 Trusts on setting up the consortium 
could have been better spent on improving patient services  

It could increase regional variations in clinical quality 

• Many elements of national contracts for doctors were put in place with clinical 
quality in mind. Moving away from national contracts could risk greater 
variations in clinical quality for patients  

There could be an impact on local economies beyond the NHS 

• Worsening terms and conditions for healthcare staff could have an impact not 
just on the NHS, but on local economies more widely.  

Page 4Page 22



TRACKING RESOLUTIONS 
Health and Adult Social Care Overview and Scrutiny Panel 
Date / 
Minute 
number 

Resolution Explanation / Minute Action Progress Target date 

29/07/12 
18 (1) 

Agreed that the panel receive 
a progress report in three 
months which would include a 
focus on the Strengths, 
Weaknesses, Opportunities 
and Threats (SWOT) analysis, 
Skills analysis and single sex 
facilities; 

This recommendation relates 
to proposed changes to 
Mental Health Recovery 
Pathways. 

Request information from 
Plymouth Community 
Healthcare 
 

Briefing 
Circulated – If 
members require 
the item to 
return to panel 
please inform the 
Democratic 
Support Office. 

22 November 
2012 

29/07/12 
18 (2) 

Agreed that a project plan 
would be circulated to 
members. 

This recommendation relates 
to proposed changes to 
Mental Health Recovery 
Pathways. 

Request information from 
Plymouth Community 
Healthcare 

Briefing 
Circulated – If 
members require 
the item to 
return to panel 
please inform the 
Democratic 
Support Office. 

22 November 
2012 

29/07/12 Agreed to receive a further 
update on the progress of the 
plan at a future meeting of the 
panel. 

This recommendation relates 
to the updated Dementia 
Action Plan. 

Further update would be 
provided to the panel at the 
January meeting of the panel. 

Ongoing January 2012 

13/09/12 
28 (1) 

Plymouth Community 
Healthcare return to the 
panel in 12 months to update 
on progress; 

This recommendation relates 
to capital investment in the 
Glenbourne Acute Psychiatric 
Unit. 

Added to work programme   

13/09/12 
28 (2) 

a report on bed occupancy 
rates is provided to the panel 
in April; 

This recommendation relates 
to capital investment in the 
Glenbourne Acute Psychiatric 
Unit. 

   

A
genda Item

 5
P

age 23



Date / 
Minute 
number 

Resolution Explanation / Minute Action Progress Target date 

13/09/12 
28 (3) 

a site visit is arranged for 
members to the Glenbourne 
Unit, to include a meeting 
with staff in the home 
treatment team. 

This recommendation relates 
to capital investment in the 
Glenbourne Acute Psychiatric 
Unit. 

 Ongoing  

13/09/12 
29 (1) 

the Joint Risk Register is made 
available to the panel; 

This recommendation relates 
to Public Health Transition 
into the Local Authority. 

 Completed 22 November 
2012 

13/09/12 
29 (1) 

the public health outcomes 
framework is distributed by 
the Democratic 
Support Officer. 

This recommendation relates 
to Public Health Transition 
into the Local Authority. 

Democratic Support to 
distribute  

Complete  

13/09/12 
30 

that Shadow Health and 
Wellbeing Board minutes 
would be included on 
future scrutiny agendas 

This recommendation follows 
an update on the developing 
Health and Wellbeing Board 

Formal meeting minutes will 
be attached to all agendas by 
the Democratic Support 
Officer 

Complete  N/A 

Grey = Completed (once completed resolutions have been noted by the panel they will be removed from this document) 
Red = Urgent – item not considered at last meeting or requires an urgent response 

P
age 24



 

Car parking Report to Plymouth Health and Adults Overview and Scrutiny Committee  
November 2011 

1

 
Report for:  Plymouth Health and Adults Overview and 

Scrutiny Committee 
 
Report Topic: Improvements in Disabled Parking at Derriford 

Hospital 
 
Report date:    For 22nd November 2012 
 
 
1. Introduction 

 
Parking their car is often the first experience patients and members of the public 
have of the hospital.  It is therefore very important that the hospital’s car parking 
facilities are appropriate and well managed to ensure visitors are not 
inconvenienced and are able to find a parking space which is appropriate for their 
particular needs.  This is especially true for disabled drivers who represent a 
significant number of our car park user base.   
 
The Trust implemented a new parking system in June 2012 which involved the 
installation of barrier controls, new payment options, the removal of staff from 
public spaces and improvements to the layout and condition of all car parks.  
 
In planning the new parking arrangements the Trust consulted with two disabled 
forums; Plymouth Wheelchair Service User Group (PWSUG) and Plymouth Area 
Disability Action Network (PLYMDAN).  The purpose of the consultation was to 
devise a solution that improved the parking experience for disabled drivers and 
increased the number of marked disabled bays.  The forum recommended that 
an additional 42 disabled parking spaces be created in car park B behind the 
barrier control, as this part of the site was deemed to provide the most 
appropriate access to the Hospital.  
 
However, whilst the hospital was committed to continuing to provide free parking 
for disabled drivers, it proved impossible to devise a simple means by which large 
numbers of cars could exit car park B without paying, whilst still being able to 
police the use of disabled spaces.  As a result, the Trust had to revise its plan 
and installed the additional 42 disabled bays throughout all the non-barrier 
controlled areas of the site.   
 
It is now clear that this solution does not meet the needs of disabled drivers, 
particularly those with limited mobility. It is leading to confusion as to which 
spaces are free and has led to numerous complaints.   

 
 
2. Current Situation 

 
The Trust has received a great deal of feedback from users of disabled parking 
facilities which can be summarised as: 
 
• The signage is not good enough to differentiate between which spaces are 

free and not. 
• There are not enough free disabled spaces for the public, causing them to 

use barrier controlled car parks where they have to pay.    

Agenda Item 6Page 25



 

Car parking Report to Plymouth Health and Adults Overview and Scrutiny Committee  
November 2011 

2

• The new spaces in car park A are not usable by those with limited mobility or 
in wheelchairs 

• Not all of the additional disabled parking bays are of adequate size. 
• Members of staff who are disabled badge holders are using public spaces. 
• Many of the new spaces are not near the main entrances to the Hospital, thus 

creating problems for people with limited mobility and those requiring use of a 
hospital wheelchair. 

 
3. Changes to Improve Parking for Patients and the Public 
 
Further work has been undertaken to identify solutions which better meet the goal of 
providing more free, full sized parking spaces for disabled badge holders which are 
near to the main entrance.  The preferred solution, which is shown in Annex 1, is to: 
 

• Build 42 new, full sized, level, disabled spaces on the bare land adjacent to 
car park F. 

• Create a fully compliant path from the new spaces to join the existing 
pavement outside of the main outpatients department. 

• Manage these new spaces as ‘Patients Only’ disabled spaces. 
• Provide a wheelchair store in the new car park with 10 coin operated 

wheelchairs. 
• Remove 16 disabled spaces currently in car park A and replace with 32 pay 

and display spaces. 
• Maintain access to any parking space in a non barrier controlled car park by 

disabled badge holders for free. 
 

4. Consultation 

The Trust has sought the views of the 2 key stakeholder forums on this proposed 
solution and received very positive feedback to date.  These comments are however 
based on drawings and a site visit is currently being organised which will allow group 
members to view the proposed site and experience the travel distances and 
gradients first hand. The visit should happen prior to the 22nd November and 
therefore further feedback can be provided at the meeting itself. 

 

5. Planning Permission and Cost 

The cost of this solution will be identified from capital funding sources in 2012/2013  

 

The solution is subject to planning permission by Plymouth City Council, whose 
officers have offered their support in principle subject to a detailed planning 
submission.  

 

Following the support of the OSC and receipt of appropriate planning permissions, 
the new facility will be completed by the end of March 2013. 

 

 

 

 

Page 26



 

Car parking Report to Plymouth Health and Adults Overview and Scrutiny Committee  
November 2011 

3

Annex 1 

 

 

 

 

 
 

F 
42 new spaces 

Page 27



Page 28

This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Please ask for: Ross Jago 
 
Date 2 October 2012 My Ref       Your Ref       
 
 
 
 
 
South West Regional Pay, Terms and Conditions Consortium 
 
I am writing to thank you for your attendance at the meeting of the Health and Adult Social Care 
Overview and Scrutiny Panel on the 26 September 2012.  
 
The meeting was organised in response to a full council motion agreed unanimously by all members 
of the city council, I have attached a copy for your information. 
 
Although Plymouth City Council had resolved to resist any attempts to introduce local or regional 
pay schemes it was important that the Health and Adult Social Care Scrutiny Panel heard the 
rationale behind proposals being developed by the South West Regional Pay Consortium and the 
impact on patients, staff and the wider Plymouth and sub-regional economy. 
 
Having considered your evidence and that of trade unions, the Plymouth Chamber of Commerce, 
Plymouth University the panel has made the following recommendations to Plymouth Hospitals NHS 
Trust Board and the South West Pay, Terms and Conditions Consortium.   
The panel would like to reaffirm that Plymouth Hospital NHS Trust remains a key partner in 
delivering sustainable outcomes for our citizens and has a key role to play in delivering growth and 
reducing inequalities, particularly in health. I would like to thank you and your staff for a continuing 
commitment to the scrutiny process and I hope that we can continue with a high level of engagement 
which will provide quality clinical outcomes for patients. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Ann James 
Chief Executive,  
Plymouth Hospitals NHS Trust (PHNT) 
Level 7 
Derriford Hospital 
PL6 8DH 
 

Democratic Support 
Democracy and Governance 
 
Plymouth City Council 
Civic Centre 
Plymouth  PL1 2AA 
 
T 01752 304469 
F 01752 304819 
E ross.jago@plymouth.gov.uk 
www.plymouth.gov.uk 

Agenda Item 7Page 29



 
 
 
Councillor Mrs Mary Aspinall 
Chair Health and Adult Social Care Overview and Scrutiny Panel. 
 
  

Page 30



 
 

 
 

Chief Executive 
Level 7, Derriford Hospital, Plymouth, Devon PL6 8DH 

 
Ann James 

Tel: 0845 155 8171 
Fax: 0845 155 8228 

email: annjames@nhs.net  
 
 
 
Date:  19th October 2012  
 
Councillor Mrs Mary Aspinall 
Chair, Health and Adult Social Care Overview and Scrutiny Panel 
Plymouth City Council 
Civic Centre 
PL1 2AA 
Plymouth 
 
Dear Mary 
 
SOUTH WEST REGIONAL PAY, TERMS and CONDITIONS CONSORTIUM 

Thank you for your letter of 2 October, following my attendance at the Health and Adult Social 
Care Overview and Scrutiny Panel on the 26th September 2012. 
 
Taking into account that I took up my post as Chief Exectuive one week before appearing 
before the Overiew and Scrutiny Panel, I was keen to hear the range of views about the 
issues and potential impact of Plymouth Hospitals Trust’s participation in the South West Pay, 
Terms and Conditions Consortium (the Consortium).  I thought that many of the points raised 
by the panel and by union colleagues were very well made and wish to re-iterate that the 
Board and I will take all of these comments into consideration, once the Consortium have 
developed its proposals, which are anticpated to be available towards the end of this year. 
 
I appreciate the panel’s recommendations made in your letter, and would like to update you on the 
issues raised therein, which I have done in the same order as set out in your letter. 
 
(1)  All staff are fully engaged in the consultation of any changes that affect them and 

their views demonstrably taken into account; 
 
I have established an open communication link with staff to get their views and allow 
them to raise their issues directly with me.  In this regard, I can confirm that we have 
received 60 emails, which have all been addressed and have established 
engagement sessions with all levels of staff over the next eight weeks, to ensure 
communication is open and staff are fully engaged in terms of this matter.   
 

(2)  PHNT to formally consider the impact of any local pay scheme on the recruitment 
and retention of staff, particularly those with specialist skills; 
 
We, like other Trusts, have said previously that once we have proposals to consider, 
we will conduct a detailed risk assessment which would include the impact on a 
range of issues, including recruitment and retention.  
 

 
Working in Partnership with the Peninsula Medical School 

 
 Chairman: Richard Crompton  Chief Executive: Ann James 

Page 31



 
 

 
 

(3)  PHNT to formally consider the impact of any local scheme on the city and sub-
regional economy; 
 
I wish to re-iterate that as a large, responsible employer, the impact of any of the 
proposals made by the Consortium will be carefully considered by our Board, while 
we will obtain the input and feedback from our staff. 
  

(4)  The South West Pay, Terms and Conditions Consortium should formally invite and 
seek the views of other key public sector employers in Plymouth and the sub-region 
as part of the wider consultation process; 
 
Whilst it is unlikely that the Consortium will engage centrally with all the cities and 
areas within the South West, as it has no legal standing, I am happy to engage with 
Plymouth City Council on the proposals received and the decision taken by our 
Board following discussions with our staff. 
  

(5)  The South West Pay, Terms and Conditions Consortium and PHNT to formally 
consider improved productivity, management and service redesign as an alternative 
to altering pay and conditions; 
 
Locally, as a Trust, we are doing this as part of our day to day business, cost 
savings plans, continuous improvement plans and clinical strategy work.   
 

(6)  PHNT to ensure the existing appraisal and supervision arrangements are carried out 
with 100% of staff; 
 
In terms of the Trust HR&OD Strategy an annual target of 90% has been set, as 
there will always be some staff who are on long-term sick, and based on the 
statistics of other NHS organisations in England and Wales, whilst we are 
endeavouring to improve our current rate of 80%, to get this to 100% is unlikely.  I 
am however, happy to report back on progress made, when I return to the Panel in 
December. 
  

(7)  Given the expenditure of seven million pounds on sickness absence within PHNT, 
the Trust is requested to produce and publish an effective sickness/absence 
management strategy; 
 
I am very pleased to confirm that, since I appeared before the Panel and in line with 
the Trust’s HR&OD Strategy, a Staff Health and Wellbeing Steering Group was 
formed, consisting of representatives from staff-side and management, including 
both the nursing and clinical bodies in the Trust, and will pro-actively work towards 
the development of an effective Employee Health Strategy.  Sickness absence 
management will form part of that work. 
  

(8)  PHNT to formulate and publish a response to the challenges raised in the staff 
survey; 
 

 
 
 

We will continue, as in the past, to publish a summary of the survey results, 
including the key messages, through the work done by the Human Resources and 
Communications Department. 
 

 
(9)  PHNT to return to a future meeting of the panel to discuss progress against the 

above recommendations. 
 

As indicated during our meeting, I am looking forward to returning to the panel in December 
to provide an update on the above and any other issues relevant at that time. 

Page 32



 
 

      
I trust the above would be in order and would like to re-iterate my appreciation to the Council for its 
continued interest as a key partner of this Trust. 
 
I am looking forward to meeting with you in December 2012. 
 
Yours sincerely 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Ann James 
Chief Executive 
 
 
 

 
 
 

Page 33



Page 34

This page is intentionally left blank



 

Never Event Update Report to Plymouth Health and Adults Overview and Scrutiny Committee 1

 
 

Report for:  Plymouth Health and Adults Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee 

 
Report Topic: Never Event Update Report 
 
Report date:    12.11.2012 
 
Author(s):   Alex Mayor, Medical Director 
    Amelia Brooks, Patient Safety Manager 
 
 
1. Background 

 
The Plymouth Health and Adults Overview and Scrutiny Committee (POSC) last 
received a report on Never Events from Plymouth Hospitals NHS Trust (PHNT) in July 
2011.  
 
Since July 2011, PHNT has reported 3 Never Events as below: 
 
Incident Category Reported Date Investigation Status 
Retained foreign object post 
procedure 

28.09.2012 Ongoing 

Wrong site surgery 25.07.2012 Complete 
Maladministration of insulin 26.09.2012 Ongoing 
 
The above incidents were escalated as ‘Never Events’ to NHS Plymouth and the 
South of England Strategic Health Authority (SWSHA) at the earliest opportunity. All 
patients and families affected have received a full apology from the Trust.  
 
Where a serious incident (including Never Events) has occurred, a full investigation is 
conducted to identify all immediate actions required to ensure ongoing safety and 
potential learning opportunities. Patients and families are asked to participate in this 
process and will often contribute to the investigation and design of solutions to 
prevent future incidents. Every never event has an associated safety improvement 
programme.  
 
The prompt escalation and reporting of these incidents is a good indicator of a 
strong safety culture at PHNT - we actively encourage all of our staff and patients to 
report areas of concern because all of these incidents will provide learning so we can 
continue to improve the safety we provide to patients. 

Agenda Item 8Page 35



 

Never Event Update Report to Plymouth Health and Adults Overview and Scrutiny Committee 2

 
2.  Never Event Summary:  

Incident Summary: 

Retained foreign object post procedure. The patient has received a full apology from the 
Consultant Surgeon. 

Investigation Summary: 

The investigation is ongoing at this time and is being led by a senior clinical investigator.  

Immediate Actions Taken: 

The following actions have already been implemented. Further actions will be added once 
the investigation is complete. 

• Immediate changes to practice implemented within operating theatres to ensure all 
surgeons and theatre teams are aware of the incident and of the associated risks 

• Gall bladder collection bags to be included in the swab count with immediate effect 

 
3.  Never Event Summary:  
 

Incident Summary: 

Wrong site surgery.  

Investigation Summary 

The investigation) is complete and has been approved by the South of England Strategic 
Health Authority.  

Immediate Actions Taken: 

The following actions have already been implemented.  

• Immediate changes to practice implemented within operating theatres to ensure all 
surgeons and theatre teams are aware of the incident and of the associated risks. 

• Immediate changes to practice to ensure that all procedures (excepting specified 
exclusions) are appropriately marked and that appropriate checks are in place to 
confirm this. 

 
4.  Never Event Summary:  
 

Incident Summary: 

Maladministration of insulin. 

Investigation Summary 

The investigation of this adverse event (Never Event) is being led by a senior clinician and is 
ongoing at this time.  

Immediate Actions Taken: 

The following actions have already been implemented. Further actions will be added 
once the investigation is complete. 

Page 36



 

Never Event Update Report to Plymouth Health and Adults Overview and Scrutiny Committee 3

• Immediate changes to practice implemented within Emergency Department (ED) to 
ensure verbal instructions for administration of medicines are not in use – NMC 
Guidelines reiterated 

• Inpatient Diabetes Team have provided immediate support to ED and further 
education sessions have been booked 

• All medical and nursing staff within ED to complete NHS Diabetes Safe Use of Insulin 
E-learning package  

• Apology and explanation given to patient’s family and followed up in writing on 28th 
September 2012 

• Insulin e-learning package developed to educate all clinical staff on issues arising 
from this adverse event 

 
5.  Improvement Plans 
 
The investigation and subsequent learning for each Never Event has been incorporated into 
Trust-wide Patient Safety Improvement Programmes. The Trust has established a Surgical 
Safety Improvement Programme (led by the Assistant Medical Director) and a Safe Use of 
Insulin Improvement Programme (led by the Clinical Director for Medicine) to ensure that 
the recommendations and actions identified through investigation are monitored until point 
of completion.  
 
The Trust’s Safe Care Group (chaired by the Medical Director) currently monitors these 
improvement programmes on a monthly basis. A monthly report is also provided to the 
Trust’s Safety and Quality Committee and further updates are provided to the Trust Board 
on a regular basis (last update 9th November 2012).  
 
6.  Surgical Safety Checklist Update 
 
PHNT recognises that two of the aforementioned Never Events occurred in a surgical setting 
and may appear to relate to previously reported incidents. Investigation has identified that 
the two recent surgical Never Events were not attributable to poor compliance with the 
Surgical Safety Checklist.  
 
PHNT continues to perform the Surgical Safety Checklist to a very high standard and collects 
a combination of qualitative and quantitative data to support this and continue to drive 
improvement. Learning identified by PHNT in this domain has been shared regionally and 
nationally. The Trust was recently ‘highly commended’ in the National Patient Safety Awards 
2012 for this work.  
 
 
 

Page 37



Page 38

This page is intentionally left blank



Health and Adult Social Care Overview and Scrutiny Panel 

Work Programme 2012/13 

 
Topics 

 

J J A S O N D J F M A 
13 
/14 

Health Integration Programme 
 

 
Healthwatch 
 

 19          
 

Health and Wellbeing Board / Joint Strategic 
Needs Assessment (JSNA) / Joint Health 
and Wellbeing Strategy (JHWBS) 

   13     28   

 

Government Policy Changes (updated as 
announced)             

 

Public Health Transition    13    24    
 

Joint Priorities 
 

Alcohol Strategy (Task and Finish)      X      
 

Dementia Strategy  19      24    
 

Safeguarding Vulnerable People (review of 
recommendations)        24    

 

NHS Devon Cluster Primary Care Trust 
 

NEW Devon, Clinical Commissioning Group (Western Locality) 
 

Commissioning Intentions 
  

 
 

 
 
 22 

 
 

 
 

  

Plymouth NHS Hospitals Trust 
 

Hospital Discharge Process (TBC) 
   

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
  

Winter Planning 
   

 
 

22 
 

 
 

 
  

Car Parking 
   

 
 

22 
 

 
 

 
  

Foundation Trust Business Case (Date TBC 
by PHNT) 

  
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

  

Agenda Item 9Page 39



 
 

 
Topics 

 

J J A S O N D J F M A 
13 
/14 

Plymouth City Council – Adult Social Care 
 

Social Care Transformation Programme        24    
 

Plymouth Community Healthcare 
 

Capital Investment in Glenbourne Unit    13       11 
 
X 

Recovery Pathways (Mental Health Service)  19    22      
 

Performance Monitoring 
 

Adult Social Care        24    
 

Quality Accounts           11 
 

Referred by Local Involvement Network 
 

Services for Gypsies and Travellers (TBC)            
 

 

Page 40


	Agenda
	4 MINUTES
	Minutes Public Pack, 26/09/2012 Health and Adult Social Care Overview and Scrutiny Panel

	5 TRACKING RESOLUTIONS AND FEEDBACK FROM THE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY MANAGEMENT BOARD
	6 PLYMOUTH NHS HOSPITALS TRUST - CAR PARKING
	7 PLYMOUTH HOSPITALS NHS TRUST - REGIONAL PAY UPDATE
	AJ 191012 PCC re SWPC

	8 PLYMOUTH HOSPITALS NHS TRUST - NEVER EVENTS
	9 WORK PROGRAMME

